
 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
February 20, 2019 – 1:30 PM 

5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of the February 6, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes  

3. Public Comment on Non-agenda Items  

4. Board Member Announcements 

5. General Manager’s Report  

6. Consent 
a. Approval of Monthly Financial Reports 
b. Approval of Certified Employment Group Contract Amendment No. 4 

 

7. Review and Accept SMART’s Fiscal Year 2017-18 Single Audit 
 

8. Authorize the General Manager to execute Contract Amendment No. 2 with Golden Gate 
Bridge, Highway and Transportation District for Customer Service Needs in the amount of 
$671,160 for a two-year term 

 
9.  Discuss the Topics to be Reviewed at the Upcoming Board of Directors Workshop on April 3, 

2019 – Discussion Only 
 
10. Next Regular Meeting Board of Directors, March 6, 2019 – 1:30 PM – 5401 Old Redwood 

Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA  94954  
 
11. Adjournment 

 
DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternate format or that 
requires an interpreter or other person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact SMART at least 72 hours prior 
to the meeting to ensure arrangements for accommodation. Please contact the Clerk of the Board at (707) 794-3072 or dial CRS 
711 for more information.  
DOCUMENTS: Documents distributed by SMART for its monthly Board meeting or committee meetings, and which are not 
otherwise privileged, may be inspected at SMART’s office located at 5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200, Petaluma, CA 
94954 during regular business hours. Documents may also be viewed on SMART’s website at: www.sonomamarintrain.org. 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to SMART after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection at the SMART Office. For information about accessing SMART meetings by public transit, use the trip planner at 
www.511 

Page 1 of 39 



 

Page 1 of 7 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
February 6, 2019 - 1:30 PM  

5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
Chair Phillips called the meeting to order at 1:30pm. Directors Arnold, Connolly, Fudge, 
Hillmer, Lucan, Naujokas, Pahre, Rogers and Zane were present. Director Rabbitt arrived later. 
 
Chair Phillips acknowledge Director Jake Mackenzie for his years of service on the SMART 
Board. A gift was presented to Director Mackenzie. Chair Phillips stated that it has been an 
honor serving with him and he thanked him for the contribution he has made for the success 
of SMART.  You will be missed, he added 
 
Director Zane stated that out of everyone she knows that sits on transit boards, Director 
Mackenzie is that one individual that consistently uses public transportation. “Your 
experience is very valuable and will be missed tremendously” and thanked him for his service. 
 
Director Arnold said that it has been a joy working with Director Mackenzie and he will be 
missed.  
 
Director Fudge stated that Director Mackenzie also takes the 5:09 am train to attend 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) meetings in San Francisco. The true value 
that Director Mackenzie brought to SMART is: 1) tenure; 2) second longest serving board 
member and 3) The relationship he established between MTC and SMART, for SMART to 
receive millions of funds to continue to move the project forward. Especially with the most 
recent recommendation of $12.6 million grant to fund its Pathway. She thanked him for his 
service. 
 
Director Lucan thanked Director Mackenzie for treating him as a peer from the day he joined 
the SMART Board. It has been a pleasure to work with you and you will be missed. 
 

Page 2 of 39 



 

Page 2 of 7 

Vice Chair Pahre stated that she remembers that back in time when she was first appointed 
to the SMART Board that it was mentioned that Director Mackenzie was traveling to Scotland 
Director Mackenzie brought a souvenir from Scotland to all board members. Because of that, 
she learned his name to say “thank you”.  She also mentioned how Director Mackenzie is very 
quiet at meetings, however when he speaks it is with a purpose to get us thinking. “I will miss 
seeing your WE car in the parking lot”.  Thank you, Jake!” 
 
Director Connolly stated that Director Mackenzie has been a fierce advocate for public 
transportation in the North Bay. He fully expects serving with Director Mackenzie at MTC and 
has been great serving with him. 
 
Director Hillmer stated “Director Mackenzie, you are a fine man”. 
 
Director Rabbitt arrived 1:41pm 
 
General Manager Mansourian stated that he knew Director Mackenzie prior to arriving at 
SMART. They both have a passion for soccer and attended various games together. The three 
MTC Commissioners Rabbitt, Connolly and Mackenzie have done a lot for SMART to be 
successful in receiving grants, largely because of Commissioner Mackenzie. He thanked 
Director Mackenzie for his leadership. 
 
Director Rabbitt stated that Director Mackenzie leadership at MTC this last year has been 
exceptional, especially with the repeal of Senate Bill 1, hiring a new Executive Director and 
for Sonoma County to be included in Regional Measure 3 for the first time. He appreciates 
his friendship and thanked him for all his work.  
 
Comments: 
Steve Birdlebough stated he appreciates Director Mackenzie experience, service and wisdom. 
 
Jack Swearingen stated that Friends of SMART is very appreciate of Director Mackenzie 
service. 
 
Director Mackenzie stated “today is a bittersweet moment”.  He thanked everyone for their 
kind remarks, they have touched his heart. Life moves on and decisions are made, he added. 
He has been in contact with the two new Directors Naujokas and Rogers and both will do a 
good job. Also, this is not the first time he gets removed from the SMART Board. He said he 
has not been silent and has voiced his concerns on how he was treated by his fellow 
Councilmembers and actions, but he now holds the record for having the shortest Vice Chair 
term. He looks back at SMART success and despite the naysayers these trains go somewhere 
and will travel north and south. The relationship that General Manager Mansourian 
established with MTC Executive Director Steve Heminger have been very crucial. It is very 
important to remember that SMART was under a black cloud and was not likely to be 
beneficiaries of Regional Measure 2 funds for the Cal Park Tunnel, and now SMART is 
receiving funds for Larkspur Extension as well as other projects. With the value of working 

Page 3 of 39 



 

Page 3 of 7 

together with current and past Board members: Judy Arnold, Valarie Brown, and Steve 
Kinsley and stopping the dividing of the two counties. Director Mackenzie continued to say 
that Former Chair Fudge suffered a huge political price when she made a decision to phase 
out the SMART project during the 2010 recession. The State Rail Plan has a vision for SMART 
and the North Bay. The State Route 37 Working Group will establish a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the four counties that will provide connectivity. The construction has 
started for Station Avenue in Rohnert Park where it will the gateway to the City of Rohnert 
Park. SMART has a future going north and south and Ferry riders need to be mindful that 
starting this fall there will be more riders.  He said the future is so bright that you have to 
wear shades and reminded members of the public that when you are the Chair of MTC it’s a 
regional operation and viewing the entire region as a whole. Also, please remember the MTC 
Executive Director Heminger has been in-charge for eight years of the Federal Transit 
Administration. Lastly, he said that he would wear his SMART jacket with pride. 
 
Chair Phillips asked the new Directors to introduced themselves.  
 
Director Naujokas stated that he is excited to join the SMART Board. He is looking forward to 
integrating public transportation to people’s daily lives. Director Zane asked Director 
Naujokas to provide a little history about himself prior to becoming a Councilmember. 
Director Naujokas said that he is a software developer and has an office in Petaluma. 
 
Director Rogers stated that he is Vice Mayor for the City of Santa Rosa. “For many of us the 
SMART train isn’t just a train but a promise to the future of how our land use policies is going 
to be and how we are going to integrate better in the North Bay and provide alternatives in 
the future of people who don’t rely in vehicles or sitting in traffic to get to places that people 
can’t afford to live”. He is interest in being part of realization where they tackle major issues 
not just transportation but around housing. He is excited to work with his many colleagues in 
Marin County and he thanked the board for the warm welcome. 
 

2. Elections of Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson 
  

Director Rabbitt nominates Director Pahre for Vice-Chair.   
 
MOTION: Director Rabbitt nominated Director Pahre for Vice-Chair. Director Arnold second 
nomination. The motion carried 11-0-0. 
 
Vice-Chair Pahre thanked everyone for the nomination and for their continued confidence, I 
can’t possibly replace Jake but will do a good job, She said that she has been the longest 
serving Vice Chair on the SMART Board. Her commitment as the representative of Golden 
Gate Bridge and from SMART is to facilitate the conversation as we move forward especially 
this year to make sure that the transition through the San Rafael Bettini Transit Center is as 
smooth as it can be. 
 
 

Page 4 of 39 



 

Page 4 of 7 

3. Approval of the January 16, 2019 Board Minutes 
 

MOTION: Director Rabbitt moved approval of the January 16, 2019 Board Minutes as 
presented. Director Lucan second. The motion carried 11-0-0  
 
Director Zane stated that she wanted to attend the January 16th Board meeting, however, the 
Bay Area Air Quality Management District initial planning meeting took longer than expected.   
 

4. Public Comment 
  

Eris Weaver stated that she was happy that the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) recommended SMART as a recipient of a $12.6 million grant to fund its bicycle and 
pedestrian pathway projects. Also, she attended the first Great Redwood Trail planning 
meeting, where trail advocates and local agencies from all over the North Coast gather to 
discuss the planning process. She welcomed Directors Naujokas and Rogers to the SMART 
Board. 
 
Steve Birdlebough stated that the Ferry service is getting extremely busy and train passengers 
will need to anticipate making Ferry reservation for a seat.  
 
Duane Bellinger welcomed Directors Naujokas and Rogers to SMART Board. He said that 
residents from East Petaluma could benefit from a SMART station at the Corona property. He 
will submit more comments in writing.  
  

5. Board Members Announcements 
 
Chair Phillips stated that today is his first meeting as being SMART Chair and he thanked all 
board members for allowing him to do so. He said SMART has an excellent staff and he will 
continue to build relationships for the future advancement of passenger service to our 
communities. He asked the board members if they would like to submit any topics, goals and 
ideas that they would like to discuss this year. Also, we would like to hold a Board Workshop 
on April 3rd to discuss them. 
 
Director Connolly suggested receiving an update on the North Coast Trail project. 
 
Director Fudge announced that the February 1st the Town of Windsor started operating the 
Windsor Hopper, which is a complimentary luxury shuttle that connects you to Windsor’s 
popular destinations. The shuttle is to serve the community to attend the release of Pliny the 
Younger event at the Russian River Brewing. She thanked SMART for being a partner in 
assisting with advertising. 
 
Director Rogers stated that he has attended prior SMART Board meetings to address his 
concerns regarding the Jennings Avenue Crossing. He said that on Tuesday, February 12th the 
California Public Utility Commission (CPUC) will hold a hearing regarding the at-grade 

Page 5 of 39 



 

Page 5 of 7 

Jennings Avenue Crossing, he will be attending representing Santa Rosa to advocate for an 
at-grade crossing. Also, he expressed his displeasure on a letter dated February 5th from the 
SMART Board to the CPUC for the hearing of February 12th stating that the at-grade crossing 
at Jennings Avenue is not safe. From his perspective, the City of Santa Rosa and SMART have 
been having productive conversations. The City of Santa Rosa is in the process of developing 
additional safety measures and alternatives for a safe at-grade crossing at Jennings Avenue. 
He was disappointed in the way the letter was phrased, since the CPUC can kill the project. 
 
Director Zane stated that Senator McGuire, SMART’s General Manager Mansourian, Director 
Fudge and herself have been engaged in a process trying to move the project forward with 
safe alternatives. She understands that the City of Santa Rosa is working on engineering plans 
to address safety alternatives and hopes to continue to engage in that process. She 
represents this area and she is very concern since it is a very low-income community and they 
deserve having a safe crossing. Director Zane also mentioned that the Sonoma County Airport 
will be having flights departing/arriving from Denver starting in March. The Airport Boulevard 
Station has been a significant connection to the Sonoma County Airport. Her friend Shaun 
Ralston told her that the 6:19NB train is always full and the quality of life has changed for 
him.  
 
Director Lucan announced that on January 17th he was at the 1 million rider celebration along 
with Chair Phillips, Director Fudge, other Board members, and passengers. He thanked staff 
for an excellent celebration and a huge milestone for SMART.  
 
Chair Phillips stated that he is aware of the Jennings Avenue Crossing issue and continue 
discussions with the City of Santa Rosa. 
 

6. General Manager’s Report 
  

General Manager Mansourian welcomed new Directors Nauyokas and Rogers to the SMART 
Board.  
 
He stated that SMART celebrated its 1 million rider(s) on January 17th and SMART has now 
carried approximately 1,031,963 passengers, 95,967 bicycles and 4,173 passengers with 
wheelchairs. The Engineers-Conductors handed out Platinum passes for free train trip as a 
special “thank you”. The next celebration will be when SMART reaches 100,000 bicycles. He 
illustrated various slides of the 1 million rider event.  
 
He introduced Chief of Police, Jennifer McGill, who reported that on February 5th at 
approximately 8:00 pm, SMART Engineer-Conductor placed the train near Eight Street, Santa 
Rosa in “emergency” status for a possible pedestrian strike. Between Police, Fire, Medical 
and SMART personnel the individual was not located and was reported that he was playing 
“chicken” with the train. No injuries were reported on board; however, this was a life and 
death situation, that the public needs to be educated on. Staff continues to work with local 
enforcement agencies. The incident caused SMART about a 20-minute delay. Mr. Mansourian 

Page 6 of 39 



 

Page 6 of 7 

encouraged Board members to inform their local Police department to continue to enforce 
traffic laws near gate crossings.   
 
Director Zane suggested releasing a press release to inform the public of how these types of 
incidents affect everyone. 
 

7. Consent 
a.  Authorize the General Manger to Execute the Collective Bargaining Agreement 

 between Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District and International Brotherhood of 
 Teamsters Local Union Number 665 for the period of January 28, 2019 to June 30, 2021; 
 and Approve a Resolution to Authorize Fiscal Year 2018-19 Budget Amendment 

 
Chair Phillips asked for Board and public comments on the proposed Consent Agenda. 
 
MOTION:  Director Pahre moved approval of the Consent Agenda as presented. Director 
Rogers second. The motion carried 11-0-0. 
 

8. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract Amendment No. 6 Burke, Williams and 
Sorenson, LLP in an amount of $200,000 for Legal Services 

 
District Counsel Tom Lyons, stated that Burke, Williams and Sorenson, LLP has been providing 
legal services since 2015. They are assisting SMART in litigation matters and real estate 
negotiations. We anticipate the continued need for their specialized experience in real estate 
negotiations transactions. 

 
MOTION: Director Rabbitt moved to Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract 
Amendment No. 6 Burke, Williams and Sorenson, LLP in an amount of $200,000 for Legal 
Services as presented. Director Lucan second. The motion carried 11-0-0. 
 

9. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract No. CV-BB-18-002 with Ghilotti Bros., 
Inc. in  an amount of $158,500 for Concrete and Electrical Modifications to the Rail 
Operations Center Maintenance Pit in Preparation for Installation of a Wheel Truing Machine 

 
Chief Engineer Bill Gamlen stated that the item before you is to approve a Contract with 
Ghilotti Bros in an amount of $158,500 to modify the vehicle maintenance pit required to 
install the wheel truing machine. The truing machine will perform services on all of its Diesel 
Multiple Unit (DMU) wheels.  
 
In September 2018, your Board approved the purchase of a wheel truing machine for the Rail 
Operation Center to reduce operating cost and increase vehicle reliability. 

  
 Staff recommends authorizing the General Manger to execute a Contract with Ghilotti Bros., 
 Inc. in amount of $158,500. 
 

Page 7 of 39 



 

Page 7 of 7 

 Comments: 
 Director Hillmer asked if the Contract amount was included in the budget. Mr. Gamlen 
 responded yes.  
  

MOTION: Director Hillmer moved to Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract No. 
CV-BB-18-002 with Ghilotti Bros., Inc. in an amount of $158,500 for Concrete and Electrical 
Modifications to the Rail Operations Center Maintenance Pit in Preparation for Installation of 
a Wheel Truing Machine as presented. Director Lucan second. The motion carried 11-0-0. 

 
10. Next Regular Meeting Board of Directors, February 20, 2019 – 1:30 PM – 5401 Old Redwood 
 Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA  94954  
 

11. Adjournment – Meeting adjourned at 2:33PM. 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
  
 

Leticia Rosas-Mendoza 
 Clerk of the Board  
 
 Approved on:         

Page 8 of 39 



Page 9 of 39 



Budget Report
FY 2018-19 Remaining 

Budget Budget

Revenues
Administration

Sales/Use Taxes 26,703,833$      13,242,322$        13,461,511$      
Interest Earnings 295,000            -                       295,000            
Rent - Real Estate 302,000            226,419               75,581              
Miscellaneous Revenue 1,075,000         3,480,847            -                    

Subtotal 28,375,833         16,949,588           13,832,092         
Operations

Fund Balance 4,560,824         4,560,824            -                    
Sales/Use Taxes 11,418,499       5,586,854            5,831,646         
Fare & Parking Revenue 3,690,000         2,524,515            1,165,485         
State Grants 6,709,939         910,900               5,799,039         
Other Charges 645,000            356,532               288,468            

Subtotal 27,024,263         13,939,625           13,084,638         

Capital

Fund Balance 20,011,091         20,011,091           -                      
Federal Funds 28,535,682       6,677,690            21,857,991       
State Grants 14,341,137       -                       14,341,137       
Other Governments/ Misc. 11,057,019       3,959,383            7,097,636         
Measure M 228,000            -                       228,000            
MTC - RM2 3,211,740         1,327,072            1,884,668         

Subtotal 77,384,669$       31,975,237$         45,409,432$       

132,784,765$    62,864,450$        72,326,162$      

Expenditures
Administration

Salaries & Benefits 5,415,504$        2,574,942$           2,840,561$        
Services & Supplies 6,534,750         1,792,655            4,742,095         
Machinery & Equipment 138,200            119,599               18,601              
Debt Service/ Other Charges 16,095,850       4,068,675            12,027,175       

Subtotal 28,184,304       8,555,871            19,628,433       

Operations
Salaries & Benefits 14,211,105       6,694,200            7,516,906         
Services & Supplies 9,956,093         3,592,412            6,363,681         
Buildings & Capital Improvements 3,175,746         912,780               2,262,965         

Subtotal 27,342,944       11,199,392         16,143,552       

Capital (14,278,631)      (1,412,086.83)     
Salaries & Benefits 1,413,881         640,420               773,461            
Services & Supplies 1,340,083         469,146               870,937            
Other Charges 1,400,000         273,948               1,126,052         
Machinery & Equipment 19,134,836       1,393,965            17,740,871       
Infrastructure 54,446,569       17,408,190         37,038,379       

Subtotal 77,735,369$      20,185,669$        57,549,700$      

Expenditure Total 133,262,617$    39,940,932$        93,321,685$      

Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District
Monthly Finance Reports

Through January 2019

YTD

Revenue Total

Page 10 of 39 



Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District
Monthly Finance Reports

Through January 2019

Investment Report
Amount

Bond Reserve Fund

Sonoma County Treasury Pool 17,072,500$         

Interest Fund

Sonoma County Treasury Pool 3,232,442             

Project Fund

Sonoma County Treasury Pool 692,480                

Principal Fund

Sonoma County Treasury Pool 7,690,113             

SMART Operating Accounts

Bank of Marin 11,931,269           

Sonoma County Treasury Pool 30,532,470           

Total 71,151,274$         

Capital Project Report
Budget Actual Remaining

Additional Railcar Purchase

Revenues 11,000,000$      550,000$              10,450,000$      
Expenditures 11,000,000$      1,650,000$           9,350,000$        

San Rafael to Larkspur Extension

Revenues 55,435,059$      33,501,280$        21,933,779$      
Expenditures 55,435,059$      34,308,293$        21,126,766$      

Windsor Extension

Revenues 55,000,000$      -$                      55,000,000$      
Expenditures 55,000,000$      170,543$              54,829,457$      

Page 11 of 39 



C
on

tr
ac

to
r

Sc
op

e
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 1
8/

19
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 1
8/

19
   

 
A

ct
ua

ls
-T

o-
D

at
e

A.
J. 

Ja
ni

to
ria

l S
er

vi
ce

Ja
ni

to
ria

l S
er

vi
ce

s f
or

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 F

ac
ili

tie
s

$1
7,

93
5.

00
$9

,6
60

.0
0

A.
J. 

Ja
ni

to
ria

l S
er

vi
ce

SM
AR

T 
St

at
io

n 
Ja

ni
to

ria
l a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$7
8,

60
0.

00
$4

2,
70

0.
00

Ah
lb

or
n 

Fe
nc

e 
&

 S
te

el
, I

nc
.

N
ov

at
o 

an
d 

Sa
n 

Ra
fa

el
 F

en
ci

ng
 P

ro
je

ct
s

$4
9,

80
0.

00
$4

9,
80

0.
00

Ai
r T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
W

es
t

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 O
n-

Ca
ll 

Re
pa

ir 
fo

r A
ir 

Co
m

pr
es

so
rs

$5
,0

00
.0

0
$2

,3
61

.0
0

Al
co

ho
l &

 D
ru

g 
Te

st
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
, L

LC
DO

T 
Dr

ug
 a

nd
 A

lc
oh

ol
 T

es
tin

g
$2

5,
00

0.
00

$9
,2

96
.0

0
Al

lia
nt

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Br
ok

er
ag

e 
&

 R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$8
3,

25
6.

00
$8

,2
56

.0
0

Al
st

ro
m

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n

DM
U

 C
ol

lis
io

n-
Da

m
ag

ed
 R

ep
ai

r W
or

k 
an

d 
O

ve
rh

au
ls

$3
00

,0
00

.0
0

$9
7,

45
7.

00
Am

er
ic

an
 R

ai
l E

ng
in

ee
r C

or
po

ra
tio

n
Ra

ilr
oa

d 
Br

id
ge

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 In
sp

ec
tio

n,
 &

 D
es

ig
n

$8
0,

00
0.

00
$1

6,
98

5.
00

Ar
am

ar
k 

U
ni

fo
rm

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Em

pl
oy

ee
 U

ni
fo

rm
 P

ro
vi

de
r a

nd
 C

le
an

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
e

$3
2,

00
0.

00
$1

7,
14

8.
00

As
bu

ry
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s (

AE
S)

Re
cy

cl
in

g 
&

 D
isp

os
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 fo
r U

se
d 

O
il,

 F
ue

l F
ilt

er
s,

 R
ag

s,
 a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
$8

,1
56

.0
0

$1
,9
14

.0
0

Be
ck

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

IT
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 R
el

oc
at

io
n

$1
3,

60
9.

00
$1

3,
60

9.
00

Be
co

m
in

g 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Bu
s B

rid
ge

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$5

0,
00

0.
00

$3
,6

61
.0

0
Be

tt
in

 In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
Ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

 In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
$1

0,
00

0.
00

$3
,4

66
.0

0
Bi

g 
Ca

t A
dv

er
tis

in
g

Di
gi

ta
l A

dv
er

tis
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
8,

00
0.

00
$1

0,
50

0.
00

Br
ad

fo
rd

 D
. A

nd
er

se
n 

db
a 

An
de

rs
en

 W
in

do
w

 T
in

tin
g

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 H

ig
h 

He
at

 R
ej

ec
tin

g 
Ti

nt
 o

n 
DM

U
 W

in
do

w
s

$1
1,

70
0.

00
$0

.0
0

Bu
rk

e,
 W

ill
ia

m
s &

 S
or

en
se

n,
 L

LP
Li

tig
at

io
n 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
50

,0
00

.0
0

$1
45

,1
95

.0
0

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
N

or
th

er
n 

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

Co
m

pa
ny

DM
U

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 H

au
la

ge
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t
$2

0,
00

0.
00

$2
0,

00
0.

00
Ce

rt
ifi

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t G

ro
up

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 S

ta
ffi

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$3
1,

20
0.

00
$2

6,
69

7.
00

Co
re

y,
 C

an
ap

ar
y 

&
 G

al
an

is
N

TD
 C

om
pl

ia
nt

 P
as

se
ng

er
 C

ou
nt

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

$3
3,

60
3.

00
$0

.0
0

De
An

ge
lo

 B
ro

th
er

s,
 L

LC
 (D

BI
 S

er
vi

ce
s)

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
Ab

at
em

en
t, 

De
br

is 
Re

m
ov

al
, a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$8
0,

00
0.

00
$7

7,
77

9.
00

De
An

ge
lo

 B
ro

th
er

s,
 L

LC
 (D

BI
 S

er
vi

ce
s)

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
Co

nt
ro

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$3

7,
65

1.
00

$3
7,

65
1.

00
De

lta
 W

he
el

 T
ru

in
g 

So
lu

tio
ns

Pu
rc

ha
se

 a
nd

 In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 W

he
el

 T
ru

in
g 

M
ac

hi
ne

 a
t R

O
C

$8
98

,4
33

.0
0

$4
32

,7
50

.0
0

Dr
. M

ar
k 

Cl
em

en
ti

Pr
e-

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t P

sy
ch

ol
og

ic
al

 E
va

lu
at

io
ns

$2
5,

00
0.

00
$1

2,
63

0.
00

eL
oc

k 
Te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
, L

LC
St

at
io

n 
Bi

ke
 L

oc
ke

rs
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
1,

28
0.

00
$8

,4
60

.0
0

Em
pi

re
 C

le
an

er
s

U
ni

fo
rm

 D
ry

-C
le

an
in

g,
 L

au
nd

er
in

g,
 a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$2
7,

00
0.

00
$1

5,
95

8.
00

Em
te

c 
Co

ns
ul

tin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

, L
LC

O
ra

cl
e 

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
Sy

st
em

 S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$6

5,
76

3.
00

$3
8,

41
5.

00
eP

at
h 

Le
ar

ni
ng

, I
nc

.
Cl

ou
d-

Ba
se

d 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 / 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

of
tw

ar
e

$6
,1

80
.0

0
$6

,1
80

.0
0

Ev
er

br
id

ge
, I

nc
.

N
ix

le
 C

om
pu

te
r S

of
tw

ar
e 

(C
lo

ud
-b

as
ed

)
$1

6,
00

0.
00

$1
1,

80
0.

00
Ge

or
ge

 H
ill

s C
om

pa
ny

, I
nc

.
Th

ird
 P

ar
ty

 C
la

im
s A

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$5
0,

00
0.

00
$2

,6
16

.0
0

GH
D,

 In
c.

SW
PP

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e,

 A
ut

oC
AD

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

Tr
af

fic
 a

nd
 H

yd
ra

ul
ic

 A
na

ly
sis

$6
0,

00
0.

00
$9

,8
63

.0
0

Gh
ilo

tt
i B

ro
s,

 In
c.

Pr
oc

ur
e 

an
d 

In
st

al
l T

re
nc

h 
Dr

ai
n 

at
 A

irp
or

t S
ta

tio
n

$2
2,

06
9.

00
$2

2,
06

9.
00

Go
ld

en
 G

at
e 

Br
id

ge
, H

ig
hw

ay
 a

nd
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t
Cu

st
om

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$2
20

,3
31

.0
0

$1
44

,5
29

.0
0

Go
ld

en
 G

at
e 

Br
id

ge
, H

ig
hw

ay
 a

nd
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t
W

ee
ke

nd
 B

us
 S

er
vi

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Sa
n 

Ra
fa

el
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 a
nd

 L
ar

ks
pu

r F
er

ry
$1

64
,9

02
.0

0
$1

7,
94

3.
00

GP
 C

ra
ne

 &
 H

oi
st

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Ca

l/O
SH

A 
Cr

an
e 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$8

,3
41

.0
0

$9
00

.0
0

Gr
an

ic
us

, I
nc

.
M

ed
ia

 S
tr

ea
m

in
g 

&
 In

te
rn

et
 B

ro
ad

ca
st

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

$1
3,

79
9.

00
$6

,8
90

.0
0

Ha
nf

or
d 

A.
R.

C.
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
La

s G
al

lin
as

 C
re

ek
 R

ip
ar

ia
n 

En
ha

nc
em

en
t P

la
n

$6
6,

17
0.

00
$5

5,
14

2.
00

He
av

y 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n,
 In

c.
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r H

ea
vy

 M
ac

hi
ne

ry
 a

nd
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
$3

,5
30

.0
0

$2
,0

30
.0

0
Ho

lla
nd

 C
om

pa
ny

Tr
ac

k 
Ge

om
et

ry
 a

nd
 M

ea
su

re
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$2
4,

00
0.

00
$2

4,
00

0.
00

Hu
lc

he
r S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

De
ra

ilm
en

t &
 H

az
m

at
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$4
0,

00
0.

00
$0

.0
0

In
du

st
ria

l R
ai

lw
ay

s C
om

pa
ny

Pr
ov

isi
on

 o
f B

al
la

st
 C

ar
, O

pe
ra

to
r t

o 
Lo

ad
 B

al
la

st
 C

ar
$8

9,
62

1.
00

$8
8,

85
8.

00
In

no
va

tiv
e 

Bu
sin

es
s S

ol
ut

io
ns

Pa
yr

ol
l P

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
$2

6,
87

2.
00

$1
1,

72
2.

00
In

te
lle

tr
ac

e,
 In

c.
In

te
rn

et
/C

el
lu

la
r T

ow
er

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$3

9,
41

4.
00

$1
9,

29
1.

00
In

te
lli

ge
nt

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

So
lu

tio
ns

, I
nc

.
M

ax
im

o 
M

M
S 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

33
,9

11
.0

0
$1

42
,4

23
.0

0
Ja

m
es

 F
la

ge
ol

le
t

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$8

4,
50

3.
00

$5
4,

99
0.

00
Le

sc
ur

e 
Co

m
pa

ny
, I

nc
.

Tr
ai

n 
W

as
h 

Re
-D

es
ig

n
$2

0,
00

0.
00

$0
.0

0
LT

K 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
Ve

hi
cl

e 
an

d 
Sy

st
em

s D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$3
37

,6
91

.0
0

$1
07

,0
58

.0
0

M
an

ag
ed

 H
ea

lth
 N

et
w

or
k

Em
pl

oy
ee

 A
ss

ist
an

ce
 P

ro
gr

am
 (E

AP
) S

er
vi

ce
s

$4
,8

00
.0

0
$1

,7
93

.0
0

M
as

ab
i L

LC
SM

AR
T 

M
ob

ile
 T

ic
ke

tin
g 

Pi
lo

t P
ro

je
ct

$5
8,

73
0.

00
$2

9,
40

0.
00

M
ax

Ac
ce

l
Co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
of

tw
ar

e 
De

sig
n/

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n/
As

se
t M

an
ag

em
en

t
$1

2,
86

7.
00

$7
,0

00
.0

0

Co
nt

ra
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y
Ac

tiv
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s a
s o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 2

Page 12 of 39 



C
on

tr
ac

to
r

Sc
op

e
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 1
8/

19
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 1
8/

19
   

 
A

ct
ua

ls
-T

o-
D

at
e

M
az

e 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

Fi
na

nc
ia

l A
ud

it 
Se

rv
ic

es
$4

9,
85

0.
00

$3
8,

10
5.

00
M

Gr
od

ne
r, 

LL
C

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

00
,0

00
.0

0
$1

6,
73

0.
00

N
et

w
ov

en
 In

c.
De

sig
n 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e 

fo
r D

oc
um

en
t a

nd
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ec

hn
ol

og
y

$4
,9

27
.0

0
$3

,5
96

.0
0

N
et

w
ov

en
 In

c.
Sh

ar
eP

oi
nt

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

, S
up

po
rt

, I
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n,

 a
nd

 R
el

at
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$9

9,
00

0.
00

$5
9,

38
6.

00
N

or
th

 B
ay

 S
AP

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Su

bs
ta

nc
e 

Ab
us

e 
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$3

,8
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
N

or
th

w
es

te
rn

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

Co
m

pa
ny

, I
nc

.
Ba

lla
st

 C
ar

 M
ov

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

$3
6,

00
0.

00
$2

8,
00

0.
00

N
os

sa
m

an
 L

LP
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
s -

 R
ai

lro
ad

 R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

Is
su

es
 &

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ca
pi

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
s

$6
7,

73
6.

00
$2

,4
19

.0
0

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

rs
 o

f C
A

Pr
e-

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t E

va
lu

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$9

,1
16

.0
0

$0
.0

0
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
rs

 o
f C

A
Pr

e-
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t E
va

lu
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$7
,6

87
.0

0
$6

,5
71

.0
0

O
jo

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y,

 In
c.

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 S

ec
ur

ity
 A

cc
es

s C
on

tr
ol

 S
ys

te
m

s a
t R

O
C 

an
d 

SM
AR

T 
He

ad
qu

ar
te

rs
$8

1,
12

8.
00

$6
0,

85
5.

00
Pa

m
co

 M
ac

hi
ne

 W
or

ks
, I

nc
.

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

W
he

el
 P

re
ss

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

$3
78

,0
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
Pa

ro
di

 In
ve

st
ig

at
iv

e 
So

lu
tio

ns
Pr

e-
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t B
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$2

0,
00

0.
00

$1
0,

25
0.

00
Pa

yc
he

x
Pa

yr
ol

l P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

$6
,5

87
.0

0
$6

,5
87

.0
0

Pi
vo

ta
l V

isi
on

, L
LC

Se
cu

rit
y 

So
ft

w
ar

e 
Li

ce
ns

in
g

$2
,2

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

Pl
at

in
um

 A
dv

iso
rs

, L
LC

St
at

e 
Le

gi
sla

tiv
e 

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$6

0,
00

0.
00

$5
0,

00
0.

00
Pl

at
in

um
 A

dv
iso

rs
, L

LC
St

at
e 

Le
gi

sla
tiv

e 
Ad

vo
ca

cy
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$6
0,

00
0.

00
$0

.0
0

Po
rt

ol
a 

Sy
st

em
s,

 In
c.

SM
AR

T 
St

at
io

n 
N

et
w

or
k 

Co
nf

ig
ur

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$1

86
,6

30
.0

0
$1

39
,6

81
.0

0
Pr

ec
isi

on
 W

ire
le

ss
Te

ch
 S

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 fo

r L
an

d 
M

ob
ile

 R
ad

io
$3

0,
00

0.
00

$1
7,

02
1.

00
Ra

ilP
ro

s,
 In

c.
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r L

ar
ks

pu
r E

xt
en

sio
n

$1
,4

31
,3

75
.0

0
$6

52
,8

22
.0

0
Re

yf
f E

le
ct

ric
 C

om
pa

ny
FY

19
 O

n-
Ca

ll 
El

ec
tr

ic
al

 W
or

k
$2

5,
00

0.
00

$0
.0

0
Sa

nt
a 

Ro
sa

 F
ire

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
, I

nc
.

SM
AR

T 
Fi

re
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$0

.0
0

Se
rv

Pr
o 

of
 L

ak
e 

M
en

do
ci

no
 a

nd
 S

on
om

a 
Co

un
ty

Bi
oh

az
ar

d 
Cl

ea
n-

U
p 

an
d 

Ha
zm

at
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$2
2,

00
4.

00
$8

,2
88

.0
0

So
no

m
a 

Co
un

ty
 F

le
et

 O
pe

ra
tio

n 
Di

vi
sio

n
N

on
-R

ev
en

ue
 F

le
et

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$7

1,
04

7.
00

$4
0,

73
6.

00
So

no
m

a 
Co

un
ty

 P
ro

ba
tio

n 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t
Ri

gh
t-

of
-W

ay
 V

eg
et

at
io

n 
Co

nt
ro

l, 
Br

us
h 

an
d 

De
br

is 
Re

m
ov

al
, a

nd
 H

om
el

es
s C

am
p 

Cl
ea

n-
up

$5
0,

00
0.

00
$1

6,
95

1.
00

Sp
er

ry
 R

ai
l S

er
vi

ce
Ra

il 
Fl

aw
 D

et
ec

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$1
3,

12
5.

00
$0

.0
0

SP
TJ

 C
on

su
lti

ng
N

et
w

or
k 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, S

ec
ur

ity
, M

ig
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

Se
tu

p 
Se

rv
ic

es
$3

96
,6

30
.0

0
$1

00
,9

13
.0

0
St

ac
y 

an
d 

W
itb

ec
k

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

Tr
ac

k 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, A

lig
nm

en
t, 

an
d 

Re
st

or
at

io
n

$2
21

,8
88

.0
0

$1
96

,1
08

.0
0

St
ac

y 
an

d 
W

itb
ec

k/
He

rz
og

, J
V

De
sig

n/
 B

ui
ld

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 C
iv

il,
 T

ra
ck

 &
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

s I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

f I
O

S-
1

$2
50

,0
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
St

ac
y 

an
d 

W
itb

ec
k/

He
rz

og
, J

V
De

sig
n/

Bu
ild

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 C
iv

il,
 T

ra
ck

 &
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

s I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

f L
ar

ks
pu

r E
xt

en
sio

n
$3

5,
79

9,
87

8.
00

$1
9,

65
7,

41
8.

00
St

an
te

c 
Co

ns
ul

tin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

, I
nc

.
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l P

er
m

it 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
M

on
ito

rin
g

$2
94

,0
82

.0
0

$6
6,

91
1.

00
St

rip
e 

N
 S

ea
l

Sa
fe

ty
 S

te
nc

ils
 a

t C
ro

ss
in

gs
$3

7,
94

1.
00

$3
7,

94
1.

00
Su

e 
Ev

an
s

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$5
0,

00
0.

00
$3

1,
43

0.
00

Su
m

ito
m

o 
Co

rp
or

at
io

n
M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
 &

 D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 R
ai

l V
eh

ic
le

s
$1

7,
71

4,
83

6.
00

$1
,1

00
,0

00
.0

0
Su

m
m

it 
Si

gn
al

, I
nc

.
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Ca
ll-

O
ut

 S
er

vi
ce

s f
or

 T
ra

ck
 a

nd
 S

ig
na

ls
$1

0,
00

0.
00

$1
,7

63
.0

0
Sw

ift
ly

, I
nc

.
AV

L 
M

ob
ile

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

an
d 

W
eb

sit
e 

In
te

rf
ac

e
$8

,9
25

.0
0

$8
,4

00
.0

0
Th

e 
GB

S 
Gr

ou
p

In
te

rn
et

 C
on

ne
ct

iv
ity

 (W
i-F

i) 
fo

r S
M

AR
T 

Tr
ai

ns
$2

26
,7

80
.0

0
$1

84
,7

04
.0

0
U

ni
te

d 
M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l I
nc

or
po

ra
te

d
HV

AC
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
s a

t S
M

AR
T 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
$1

9,
32

0.
00

$4
,7

29
.0

0
U

ta
h 

Tr
an

sit
 A

ut
ho

rit
y

DM
U

 W
he

el
 T

ru
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
$1

34
,9

64
.0

0
$2

8,
41

3.
00

Va
n 

Sc
oy

oc
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s
Fe

de
ra

l L
ob

by
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
$3

0,
00

0.
00

$0
.0

0
Va

n 
Sc

oy
oc

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

Fe
de

ra
l L

eg
isl

at
iv

e 
Ad

vo
ca

cy
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$3
3,

12
5.

00
$2

7,
00

0.
00

Ve
nT

ek
 T

ra
ns

it 
In

c.
Cl

ip
pe

r V
en

di
ng

 M
ac

hi
ne

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$2
33

,9
56

.0
0

$1
11

,4
08

.0
0

Vi
ev

u
Cl

ou
d-

Ba
se

d 
St

or
ag

e 
of

 S
ec

ur
ity

 D
at

a
$1

,0
80

.0
0

$0
.0

0
W

BE
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

PA
 S

ys
te

m
 In

st
al

l P
ro

je
ct

 a
t S

M
AR

T 
St

at
io

ns
$4

4,
58

2.
00

$4
4,

58
2.

00
W

BE
Re

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 A

V 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

$2
,7

53
.0

0
$2

,7
53

.0
0

W
es

t C
oa

st
 A

rb
or

ist
s,

 In
c.

Tr
ee

 T
rim

m
in

g,
 R

em
ov

al
, a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$5
0,

00
0.

00
$2

9,
59

0.
00

W
hi

tin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

, I
nc

.
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f J

ac
ks

 fo
r D

M
U

$9
,2

75
.0

0
$9

,2
75

.0
0

W
ill

ia
m

 C
am

pa
gn

a
Di

sa
bi

lit
y 

Ac
ce

ss
 C

on
su

lta
nt

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

2,
00

0.
00

$1
,0

00
.0

0
W

RA
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
su

lta
nt

s
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l P

er
m

itt
in

g,
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
&

 S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$3

54
,8

05
.0

0
$2

00
,7

56
.0

0
TO

TA
L:

$6
2,

42
8,

74
9.

00
$2

4,
87

0,
05

8.
00

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 2

*A
ct

ua
ls-

To
-D

at
e 

in
cl

ud
es

 in
vo

ic
es

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

as
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
1,

 2
01

9,
 b

ut
 m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ro

ce
ss

ed
 in

 S
M

AR
T'

s F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ys
te

m
.

Page 13 of 39 



Page 14 of 39 



Certified Employment Group 

Fourth Amendment 

Contract No. HR-PS-15-001   Page 1 of 2   

 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

AND CERTIFIED EMPLOYMENT GROUP  

 

This Fourth Amendment dated as of February ____, 2019 (the “Fourth 

Amendment”) to the Agreement for Consultant Services by and between the Sonoma-

Marin Area Rail Transit District (“SMART”) and Certified Employment Group 

(“CONSULTANT”), dated as of July 27, 2015 (the “Original Agreement,” and as 

amended by the First, Second, Third and this Fourth Amendment, the “Agreement”).   

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, SMART and CONSULTANT previously entered into the Original 

Agreement and subsequent Amendments to provide temporary staffing services, Direct 

Hire Search services, and computer skills testing; and 

 

WHEREAS, SMART desires to increase the amount of the Agreement by 

$36,720 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $194,953.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the 

covenants contained herein, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties that: 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. “PRICING/FEES AND BILL RATES” Section of the Agreement is amended as 

follows: 

 

The Agreement amount shall be increased by $36,720 for the provision of services, 

with a total not-to-exceed amount of $194,953. 

 

 

Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented hereby, the 

Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits thereto is, and shall 

continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, and nothing contained 

herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect any 

provision of the Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15 of 39 



Certified Employment Group 

Fourth Amendment 

Contract No. HR-PS-15-001   Page 2 of 2   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Fourth Amendment as 

set forth below. 

 

 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 

DISTRICT 

 

 

Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 

               Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 

  

   

      CERTIFIED EMPLOYMENT GROUP 

 

 

Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 
 

 Its __________________________________ 

 

 

 

                                                                APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

Dated: _______________                      By_________________________________ 

                                                                       District Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16 of 39 



Page 17 of 39 



SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED June 30, 2018 

Page 18 of 39 



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 

Page 19 of 39 



SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2018 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ............................................................................. 1 

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results .......................................................................... 1 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings .......................................................................... 2 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs ............................................ 2 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ........................................................................... 3 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ............................................................. 5 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
 Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards .................. 7 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program;  
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the  
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance ........ 9 

Page 20 of 39 



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 

Page 21 of 39 



SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2018 

SECTION I—SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
SECTION I—SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
Financial Statements 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial 
statements audited were prepared in accordance with 
GAAP Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

 Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X 
None 
Reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs: 

 Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X 
None 
Reported 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major 
federal programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA#(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

20.500/20.507 Federal Transit Cluster 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:             $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No 

1
Page 22 of 39 



SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
Our audit did not disclose any significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses or instances of noncompliance 
material to the basic financial statements. We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control 
dated November 28, 2018 which is an integral part of our audits and should be read in conjunction with this 
report.   

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
Our audit did not disclose any findings or questioned costs required to be reported in accordance with 
Uniform Guidance.  

2
Page 23 of 39 



SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Federal Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/ CFDA Identifying Federal 

Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

US Department of Transportation Pass Through Programs
Passed Through California Department of Transportation

Highway Planning and Construction (Federal-Aid Highway Program)
 Black Point Bridge Automation  20.205  ISTDEML 6411(002)  $2,280

Subtotal of Department of Transportation Pass-Through Programs 2,280

U.S Department of Transportation Direct Programs
Federal Transit Cluster

Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants
SMART San Rafael to Larkspur Extension 20.500 6,224,263

Federal Transit - Formula Grants 
SMART San Rafael to Larkspur Extension 20.507 3,102,133

Subtotal Federal Transit Cluster 9,326,396

Total Department of Transportation 9,328,676

U.S Department of Homeland Security-Federal Emergency Management Pass Through Programs
Passed Through California Governor's Office of Emergency Services

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters)
January 2017 Emergency Flood Funding (FEMA) 97.036 FEMA-4301-DR-CA 121,424
October 2017 Emergency Fire Funding (FEMA) 97.036 FEMA-4344-DR-CA 36,184

157,608
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security-Federal Emergency Management Agency

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $9,486,284

See Accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

3
Page 24 of 39 



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 

Page 25 of 39 



SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2018 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE 

NOTE 1-REPORTING ENTITY 

The Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes expenditures of federal awards for 
the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (District), California and its component units as disclosed in 
the notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 

NOTE 2-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts 
and reported in the financial statements, regardless of the measurement focus applied.  All proprietary funds 
are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.  Expenditures of Federal Awards reported on the 
Schedule are recognized when incurred. 

NOTE 3 – INDIRECT COST ELECTION  

The District has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance.

5
Page 26 of 39 



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 

Page 27 of 39 



4-4 inion: ; No MW, No SD, Maybe Other Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON  
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors of the  
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 
Petaluma, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type 
activities of the District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated November 28, 2018.  

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

7
Page 28 of 39 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s  financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated November 28, 2018. which is an 
integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report.  

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
November 28, 2018

8
Page 29 of 39 



13-1 Major Programs Opinion: NO MW, SD and/or Other Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR  
FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; 
 AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board Members of the  
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 
Petaluma, California 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District’s (District) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the District’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The 
District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2018. 

9
Page 30 of 39 



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

10
Page 31 of 39 



Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of the District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial 
statements.   We issued our report thereon dated November 28, 2018, which contained an unmodified 
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on 
the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 
the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole.  

Pleasant Hill, California 
February 5, 2019 

11
Page 32 of 39 



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 

Page 33 of 39 



Page 34 of 39 



Page 35 of 39 



Page 36 of 39 



 

GOLDEN GATE BRIDGE, HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

Second Amendment  

Contract No. 131144330.7 Page 1 of 3 

 
 

 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CUSTOMER SERVICE 

CENTER SUPPORT SERVICES BETWEEN THE  

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT AND  

GOLDEN GATE BRIDGE, HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT. 

 

This Second Amendment dated as of February ____, 2019 (the “Second 

Amendment”) to the Agreement for Customer Service Center Support Services by and 

between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (“SMART”) and Golden Gate 

Bridge, Highway and Transportation District (“DISTRICT”), dated as of May 16, 2017 

(the “Original Agreement,” as previously amended by the First Amendment, and this 

Second Amendment, the “Agreement”).   

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, SMART and DISTRICT entered into the Agreement to fulfill the 

need for Customer Service Center Support Services during the first 9 months of 

SMART's rail passenger service; and 

 

 WHERAS, SMART and DISTRICT previously entered into the First Amendment 

on February 21, 2018, to extend the term of the Agreement, to increase the monthly fee 

amount, and to revise the notice period for termination, as well as to include a quarterly 

review of the customer service budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to extend the term of the Agreement for twenty-

four (24) additional months, and to increase the not-to-exceed amount by $671,160 for a 

total not-to-exceed amount of $1,101,756. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the 

covenants contained herein, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties that: 

 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

 

1. III.  COMPENSATION AND MANNER OF PAYMENT.  Section III of the 

Agreement is amended as follows: 

 

“The DISTRICT will perform all of the services included in Section II for a fee of up 

to $27,965 per month based on actual services rendered. The monthly fee amount will 

include all costs and expenses incurred by the DISTRICT in performing the services 

in Section II.  This will increase the not-to-exceed amount of the Agreement by 

$671,160 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $1,101,756. The DISTRICT will submit 

Page 37 of 39 



 

GOLDEN GATE BRIDGE, HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

Second Amendment  

Contract No. 131144330.7 Page 2 of 3 

 
 

 

invoices at the end of each month, prorated for any partial month. SMART will pay 

approved invoices within thirty (30) days of their receipt.”  

 

2. IV.  TERM OF AGREEMENT.  Section IV of the Agreement is amended as 

follows: 

 

“The term of this Agreement shall be extended and will remain in effect for an 

additional twenty-four (24) months, or until February 15, 2021, unless terminated 

sooner pursuant to Section X, Termination.” 

 

 

3. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented hereby, 

the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits thereto is, 

and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, and nothing 

contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect 

any provision of the Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38 of 39 



 

GOLDEN GATE BRIDGE, HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

Second Amendment  

Contract No. 131144330.7 Page 3 of 3 

 
 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Second Amendment as 

set forth below. 

 

 

 

 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 

DISTRICT 

 

 

Dated: _____________ By:__________________________________ 

               Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 

  

   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

Dated: ______________                       By:_________________________________ 

                                                                      SMART District Counsel 

 

 

GOLDEN GATE BRIDGE, HIGHWAY  

AND TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

 

 

Dated: _____________ By:___________________________________ 
 

 Its:___________________________________ 

 

 

ATTEST: 

By:__________________________________ 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

Dated:_____________                          By:___________________________________ 

 Attorney for the DISTRICT 

                                                                 

 

 

 

 

Page 39 of 39 


	01_Agenda_02.20.2019
	02_Minutes_02.06.2019_Final
	06a_Monthly Financial Reports
	06a_February 2019 Contract Summary.pdf
	Contract Report


	06b_Certified Employment Group Amendment Staff Rpt
	07_ SMARTs Single Audit_2018 Staff Rpt
	08_GGB Customer Service Staff Rpt



